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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THjE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA

Norfolk Division

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

LIONEL NELSON WILLIAMS,
a/k/a "Harun Ash-Shababi,'

JUL - 6 2017

CLERK, U.S. DlSTRiCT COURT
NORFOLK, VA

V. ) Criminal No. 2:17crl

)
18 U.S.C. § 2339B
Attempt to Provide Material Support or
Resources to a Designated Foreign Terrorist

Defendant. ) Organization
(Count 1)

18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(G)
Asset Forfeiture

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT

July 2017 Term—At Norfolk

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

COUNT 1

ATTEMPT TO PROVIDE MATERIAL SUPPORT OR RESOURCES

(18 U.S.C. §2339B)

1. On October 15,2004, the United States Secretary of State designated al-Qa'ida in

Iraq ("AQI"), then known as Jam'at al Tawhid wa'al-Jihad, as a Foreign Terrorist Organization

("FTO") under Section 219 of the Immigration and Nationality Act, and as a Specially

Designated Global Terrorist under section 1(b) of Executive Order 13224.

2. On May 15,2014, the Secretary of State amended the designation of al-Qa'ida in

Iraq as a FTO under Section 219 of the Immigration and Nationality Act and as a Specially

Designated Global Terrorist entity vinder section 1(b) ofExecutive Order 13224 to add the alias

Islamic State of Iraq and the Levant ("ISIL") as its primary name. The Secretary also added the

following aliases to the listing: the Islamic State of Iraq and al-Sham ("ISIS"), the Islamic State
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of Iraq and Syria ("ISIS"), ad-Dawla al-Islamiyya fi al-'Iraq wa-sh-Sham, Daesh, Dawla al

Islamiya, and Al-Furqan Establishment for Media Production. Although the group has never

called itself "Al-Qaeda in Iraq (AQI)," this name frequently has been used to describe it through

its history. In an audio recording publicly released on June 29,2014, ISIS announced a formal

change of its name to the Islamic State ("IS"). On September 21, 2015, the Secretary added the

following aliases to the ISIS listing: Islamic State, ISIL, and ISIS. To date, ISIS remains a

designated FTO.

3. Between on or about March 2016 and on or about December 22,2016, in the City

of Suffolk, in the Eastern District ofVirginia, and elsewhere, defendant LIONEL NELSON

WILLIAMS, a/k/a "Harun Ash-Shababi," did knowingly and unlawfully attempt to provide

"material support or resources," as that term is defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section

2339A(b)(l), including money, property, and services, to a foreign terrorist organization, to wit,

the Islamic State of Iraq and Syria ("ISIS"), which at all relevant times was designated by the

Secretary of State as a foreign terrorist organization, knowing that ISIS had been designated as a

foreign terrorist organization, and knowing that ISIS had engaged in, and was engaging in,

terrorist activity and terrorism.

4. As part ofhis attempt to provide material support to ISIS, among other things, and

understanding and believing that ISIS needed fimds to support its violent activities, LIONEL

NELSON WILLIAMS, a/k/a "Harun Ash-Shababi," provided another person and other persons

with a prepaid debit card and a monetary wire transmission, understanding and intending that

those funds would be provided to ISIS, and used by ISIS, including to purchase weapons for

fightmg.

(All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2339B.)
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FORFEITURE ALLEGATION

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER ALLEGES AND FINDS PROBABLE CAUSE THAT:

L The defendant, if convicted of the violation alleged in this Superseding Indictment, shall

forfeit to the United States, as part of the sentencing piirsuant to Federal Rule of Criminal

Procedure 32.2:

a. All assets in which he has an interest, foreign or domestic;

b. All assets, foreign or domestic, affording a source of influence over any entity or

organization engaged in planning or perpetrating any federal crime of terrorism,

as set out in 18 U.S.C. § 2332b(g)(5);

c. All assets, foreign or domestic, acquired or maintained with the intent and for the

purpose of supporting, planning, conducting, or concealing any federal crime of

terrorism as set out in 18 U.S.C. § 2332b(g)(5); and

d. All assets, foreign or domestic, derived from, involved in, or used or intended to

be used to coromit any federal crime of terrorism, as set out in 18 U.S.C. §

2332b(g)(5).

2. If any property that is subject to forfeiture above, as a result of any act or omission of the

defendant, (a) cannot be located upon the exercise ofdue diligence, (b) has been

transferred to, sold to, or deposited with a third party, (c) has been placed beyond the

jurisdiction of the Court, (d) has been substantially diminished in value, or (e) has been

commingled with other property that cannot be divided without difficulty, it is the

intention of the United States to seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendant, as

subject to forfeiture under Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p).

3. The property subject to forfeiture includes, but is not limited to:
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a. $230 in U.S. currency seized from a 2001 Toyota Camry with VIN #

4T1BG22KX1U118805 on December 21, 2016;

b. A sword in a black case, a knife in a blue case and a folding police knife seized

from the defendant on December 21,2016;

c. An AK-47 rifle, an S&T Motiv/Lionheart Pistol, and a Ruger rifle seized from the

defendant on December 21, 2016;

d. A Marlin rifle seized form the defendant on December 21, 2016.

(In accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(G) by 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c).)
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United States v. Lionel Nelson Williams, a/k/a "Harun Ash-Shababi"

Criminal No. 2:17crl

A TRUE BILL:

Dana J. Boente

United States Attorney

FOREPERSON

By:
Joseph DePadilla
Andrew C. Bosse

Assistant United States Attorneys
United States Attorney's Office
101 West Main Street, Suite 8000
Norfolk, VA 23510
Telephone: 757-441-6331
Facsimile: 757-441-6689

E-Mail Addresses: Joe.Depadilla@usdoj.gov
Andrew.Bosse@usdoj.gov
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Criminal Case Cover Sheet

REDACTED

U.S. District Court

Place of Offense: Under Seal: Yes • No Kl Judge Assigned:

City: Suffolk, VA Superseding Indictment: Yes Criminal Number: 2:17crl

County/Parish: Same Defendant: New Defendant:

Magistrate Judge Case Number: 2:16mj524 Arraignment Date: July 12, 2017 at 2:30
pm. Please send notice of arraignment to
counsel and defendant.

Search Warrant Case Number:

R 20/R 40 from District of

Defendant Information:

Juvenile: Yes • No IS FBI#

Defendant Name: Lionel Nelson Williams lAlias Name(s): Harun Ash-Shababi

BirthDate: ^Hl990 SS#:••11424 Sex: M Race: Black Nationality: U.S. Place of Birth:

Height: 5'11" Weight: 140 lbs. Hair: Black Eyes: Brown Scars/Tattoos:

Interpreter: Yes • No 13 List Language and/or dialect:

Location Status:

Arrest Date:

M Already in Federal Custody as of: 12/22/ 6 in: Westem Tidewater Regional Jail

• Already in StateCustody • On Pretrial Release • Not in Custody

• Arrest Warrant Requested • Fugitive • Summons Requested

•Arrest Warrant Pending • DetentionSought • Bond

Defense Counsel Information:

Name: Keith L. Kimball • CourtAppointed
Address: 150 Boush Street, Suite 403, Norfolk,

VA 23510 • Retained

Telephone: 757-457-0800 13 Public Defender

Email: keith kimball@fd.org
• Office of FederalPublicDefendershouldnot be appointed due to conflictof
interest

• CJAattorney: should notbe appointed dueto conflict of interest

U.S. Attornev Information:

AUSAs: Joseph E. DePadilla, Andrew C. Bosse Telephone No. 757-441-6331 Bar #:

Complainant Agency. Address & Phone Number or Person & Title:

FBI, 509 ResoiarceRow, Chesapeake, VA 23320,757-455-0100, Special Agent K. Ashby

U.S.C. Citations;

Code/Section Description of Offense Charged Count(s) Capital/Felony/Misd/Petty
Setl 18 U.S.C. §2339B Attempt to Provide Material Support or

Resources to a Designated Foreign Terrorist
Organization

1 Felony

Set 2 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(G) Asset Forfeiture

Set 3

Set 4
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